




MERCEDES CITY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

AUGUST 2, 2022 – 6:30 P.M. 
MERCEDES CITY HALL – COMMISSION CHAMBERS 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Oscar D. Montoya Sr.  Mayor 

Joe Martinez   Mayor Pro-Tem 

Jacob Howell   Commissioner 

Ruben Saldana   Commissioner 

Armando Garcia  Commissioner 

 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Alberto Perez   City Manager 

    Martie Garcia-Vela  City Attorney(webex) 

    Joselynn Castillo  City Secretary 

    Javier Ramirez   Asst. City Manager 

    Ervin Vilchis   IT Assistant 

    Nereida Perez   Finance Director 

    Joaquin Hernandez  Public Works Director 

    Marisol Vidales   Library Director 

    Ruben Gutierrez  Fire Marshal 

 

OTHERS PRESENT: Axel Vallejo, Brianna Casares, Jose Gomez, Isoforo Pena, Ramon Mejia,   

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

Mayor Montoya welcomed everyone and called meeting to order at 6:30 pm.  

2. ESTABLISH QUORUM 

All members of the Commission were present, which constitutes a full quorum.  

3. INVOCATION  

Commissioner Saldana said the invocation. 

4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioner Howell led in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

5. OPEN FORUM 

- Mr. Jose Gomez stated that social media is only promoting certain information and are not 

including pending lawsuit or other topics citizens are concerned about. He stated the People 

are asking about the status of the contingency lawsuits. Mr. Gomez stated that the city can 

use the 36 acres to help the city grow. He added that updating the public will help build trust 

in city leaders.  

- Mr. Isoforo Pena expressed his concerns with a bad experience he had at city hall and law 

enforcement was called. He stated that he went to city hall to check for information at which 

was not updated. Mr. Pena stated he had an issue with brush services not taking all of the 

brush from the site. He stated that citizens are charged for the service but are not reimbursed 

if there is no brush. 

- Mr. Carlos Gonzalez and Mr. David Escobares signed up but did not speak as they are part of 

the agenda. 

- Mr. Ramon Mejia stated that over the weekend he went to the aquarium and USS Lexington 

because there’s no place to visit in Mercedes. He stated that the elida reyna concert did not go 

1



as the city planned. He asked how much the city spent on the event and how much did they 

pay Elida Reyna. He stated we are teaching our children “party time”. He added that now the 

chamber asked for more money for the street festival and a KMB member is asking for travel 

expenses. He stated the old fire station could be repaired. He stated that an individual was 

paid $140K for a grant writer. In 2018 the City commission borrowed $9.9 Mil for streets and 

in 2020 another $9 Mil was borrowed. He asked where is the money. Mr. Mejia stated a 

contract should not be discussed behind closed doors.  

6. PRESENTATIONS:  

a. Recognition of Dr. Sammy Garcia  

Ms. Brianna Casares recognized Dr. Samuel Garcia, for his achievements with NASA 

and is a STEM education specialist. He presented to the youth at the Library and the 

Recreation Center what it’s like to be an astronaut. Dr. Garcia thanked the community of 

Mercedes, expressed his condolences to Commissioner Howell for the loss of his father. 

He thanked his family for their help. All people need are the opportunity to excel. Dr. 

Garcia gave the commission a small token of appreciation. Mayor Montoya thanked Dr. 

Garcia and commended his achievements and wished him to a great career.  

Commissioner Howell stated that he will inspire the next generation of children to work 

hard.  

b. Rock N Boots Presentation  

Mr. David Escobares and Mr. Carlos Gonzalez presented to the Commission and 

requested to partner with the City of Mercedes. Mr. Gonzalez want the event to be a part 

of the Community. His goal is to make this a place for residents from other cities to 

attend. They are looking for a place to have the event. It’s a 2-day event with different 

genres of music. Mr. Escobares stated that this can help the city grow and bring people to 

Mercedes. He stated the are ready to allocate the moneys to help the city bring in the tax 

costs.  

c. Legislative Update by Congresswoman Mayra Flores 

Congresswoman Mayra Flores was unable to attend the meeting.  

7. CONSENT AGENDA: 

a. Approval of Minutes for Meeting(s) held July 5, 2022 & July 19, 2022.  

b. Second and final reading of Ordinance No. 2022-15 to approve the TGS RGC 

COSA.  

Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez made a motion to approve all items under consent agenda. 

Commissioner Garcia seconded. Upon a called vote, the motion passed unanimously. 

8. ORDINANCE/RESOLUTIONS: Present, Discuss, Consider and Possible Take Action Regarding: 

a. Public Hearing regarding the Water Conservation Plan.  

i. Approval of Resolution No. 2022-11 for the Water Conservation Plan 

Mr. Ramirez presented the water conservation plan as required by TCEQ. The 

plan is a long-term plan of the City goals. The Drought contingency plan 

addresses the short-term issues. Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez motioned to approve. 

Commissioner Saldana seconded. Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez thanked staff for 

working on these plans due to the current water levels and asked if there are any 

regional incentives. Mr. Ramirez stated the city has been awarded for a water 

well and if the City has ground water then the city does not need to rely on the 

Rio Grande and other water sources. Mayor Montoya opened the Public Hearing 

at 7:09 P.M. Mr. Mejia stated that water is life. Public hearing closed at 7:10 

P.M.   

2



b. Public Hearing regarding the Drought Contingency Plan  

i. Approval of Resolution No. 2022-12 for the Drought Contingency Plan. 

Mayor Montoya opened the Public Hearing at 7:10 P.M. There were no 

comments from the public. Mayor Montoya closed the hearing closed at 7:11 

PM.  Mayor Pro- Tem Martinez motioned to approve. Commissioner Garcia 

seconded. Commissioner Saldana stated that under the water conservation plan 

the City’s use is 177 gallon per capita per day and the  goal is to get to 99gallons 

of water per capita use. There is a continued public education source that can be 

used. Commissioner Saldana stated that education is the best way to conserve 

water. Mayor Montoya stated there is cost component to the city on water 

shortage. Mayor Montoya stated this is huge responsibility and the city and 

citizens need to do their part and get educated about water conservation. Upon a 

called vote, the motion passed unanimously for both resolutions.  

9. MANAGEMENT ITEMS(S): Present, Discuss, Consider, and Possible Take Action Regarding:  

a. Chamber of Commerce request for funds for Texas Street Festival. 

Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez made a motion to approve. Commissioner Saldana seconded. 

Mr. Perez stated that funds are being moved from another line item. Mayor Pro-Tem 

Martinez motioned to approve. Commissioner Saldana seconded. Mayor Pro-Tem 

Martinez stated that hotel motel tax must be used for promoting tourism. Mayor Pro-Tem 

Martinez stated that in order to fix the streets and issues of the city is through sales tax. 

He informed everyone of all the Cities that have events to promote tourism for their city. 

Commissioner Howell stated he is grateful to be on the EDC board. He stated they are 

moving money around where its better used. He stated that instead of having little 

Nashville all year, making it a seasonal event to use those funds on other items. 

Commissioner Garcia stated that the funds from the street festival fund that are received 

are given out to students as scholarships. Commissioner Saldana stated that these events 

are important for the community to come together. Upon a called vote, the motion passed 

unanimously. 

b. Selecting a member to the Amigos Del Valle Board of Representatives. 

Commissioner Howell motioned to nominate Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez for the Amigos 

Del Valle Board of Representatives. Mayor Montoya seconded the motion. Mayor 

Montoya approved and designated Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez.  

c. Approval of Gran reimbursement for historically designated property 304 S. Texas 

Ave.  

Ms. Vidales stated Ms. Manuela Garza applied for the reimbursement for her property. 

She had roof repairs and spent a total of $21K. The cap for the roof grant is $10K. It was 

already budgeted and the Historical board approved. Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez motioned 

to approve. Commissioner Garcia seconded.  Ms. Vidales stated that they need to apply 

for the renovations first and the board has to review their improvements prior to verifying 

the renovations to make sure it will not affect the integrity of the building. Upon a called 

vote, the motion passed unanimously.  

d. Approval of Travel expense for KMB committee members. 

Mr. Ramirez stated a KMB member attended the Keep Texas Beautiful conference in 

Austin that occurs every year. Commissioner Garcia motioned to approve. Mayor Pro-

Tem Martinez abstained. No one seconded. Motion died due to lack of a second.  

10. BIDS/CONTRACTS: Present, Discuss, Consider, and Possibly Take Action Regarding: 

3



a. Memorandum of Understanding between Region One Educational Service Center 

and the City of Mercedes on behalf of the Dr. Hector P. Garcia Memorial Library. 

Ms. Vidales stated that Region One will be going back to in person classes and are asking 

to use the space. Commissioner Saldana motioned to approve. Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez 

seconded. Upon a called vote, the motion passed unanimously.   

b. Approval to secure bids for Audit Services for FYE 2022. 

Ms. Perez stated that there are additional funds to be audit and the dates for the due date 

of the audit. Mayor Pro-Tem Martinez motioned to approve. Commissioner Saldana 

seconded. Mr. Perez informed the commission of the audit process. Upon a called vote, 

the motion passed unanimously.  

Mayor Montoya called the meeting into executive session at 7:40 P.M. Returned from executive 

session at 9:37 P.M.  

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

a. Consultation with Attorney regarding water meters – Section 551.071 

b. Consultation with Attorney regarding contracts – Section 551.071 

12. OPEN SESSION: Discuss, Consider, and Possible Take Action Regarding:  

a. Item A from Executive Session. 

b. Item B from Executive Session. 

No action on items A and B. Commissioner Howell stated that discussing things out of 

executive can jeopardize legal matters.  

13. ADJOURNMENT  

Commissioner Saldana motioned to adjourn. Commissioner Howell seconded. Upon a called 

vote, the motion passed unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 9:38 P.M.  

4



8A

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



1  

ORDINANCE NO.  

2022-17   

 

AN ORDINANCE PROHIBITING THE PROCESSING, STORAGE, 

APPLICATION, DISPOSAL, AND TREATMENT OF MUNICIPAL 

SOLID WASTE AND WASTEWATER 
 

 
Sec. 1. Purpose. 

 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to protect, preserve and promote public health, safety and welfare 

and the environment by prohibiting within the City of Mercedes the processing, storage, application, 

disposal, and treatment of municipal solid waste and wastewater. 

 

Sec. 2. Definitions. 

 

For the purposes of this Ordinance, the following words, terms and phrases shall have the meanings 

respectively ascribed to them by this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different 

meaning: 

 

a) “Application” shall mean the physical act of placing or spreading natural gas waste or oil waste on 

any road or real property located within the Town of Glastonbury. 
 

b) “Disposal” shall mean the discharge, deposit, injection, dumping, spilling, leaking or placing of 

industrial, liquid or hazardous waste into or on land, water or the City’s Utility System. 

 

c) “Liquid Waste” 
 

d) “Wastewater” shall mean Industrial waste, sewage or other waste including that which may be 

combined with any water, ground water, surface water or storm water, whether treated or untreated. 

e) “Oil extraction activities” shall mean all geologic or geophysical activities related to the 

exploration for or extraction of oil, including, but not limited, to, core and rotary drilling and 

hydraulic fracturing. 
 

f) “Oil waste” shall mean: 1) any liquid or solid waste or its constituents that is generated as a result 

of oil extraction activities, which may consist of water, brine, chemicals, naturally occurring 

radioactive materials, heavy metals, or other contaminants; 2) leachate from solid wastes associated 

with oil extraction activities; and 3) any products or byproducts resulting from the treatment, 

processing, or modification of any of the above wastes. 
 

Sec. 3. Prohibitions. 
 

1. The processing, storage, application and treatment of municipal solid waste and wastewater, 

whether or not such waste has received approval for use by TCEQ (Texas Commission on 

Environmental Quality) or any other regulatory body, on any road or real property located 

within the City for any purpose is prohibited, unless operation is carried out by the City. 

 

2. The introduction of municipal solid waste by product from the processing, storage and treatment 

of municipal solid waste or wastewater, including wastewater (treated or untreated), into any 

wastewater collection system and wastewater treatment facility within or operated by the City is 

13



2  

prohibited. 

 

3. The introduction of municipal solid waste by product from the processing, storage and 

treatment of municipal solid waste or wastewater, including wastewater (treated or untreated), 

into any solid waste management facility within or operated by the City is prohibited. 

 

4. The storage, disposal, application, sale, acquisition, handling, transfer, treatment and/or processing 

of municipal solid waste and wastewater from domestic septic tanks, portable toilets, d o m e s t i c  

a n d  c o m m e r c i a l  g r e a s e  t r a p s ,  a n d  wastewater sludges activities is prohibited within the 

City, unless operation is carried out by the City. 

 

Sec. 4. Bid specifications of the City related to the construction, repair or 

maintenance of Town owned and/or maintained roads or real property within the Town. 

 

All bid specifications of the City related to either (a) the purchase or acquisition of materials by the 

Town to be used to construct, repair or maintain any City owned and/or maintained road or real 

property within the City or (b) the performance of services for the City to construct, repair or 

maintain any City owned and/or maintained road or real property within the City, shall include a 

requirement that each bidder shall provide a certification to the City in its bid response that, in 

connection with the bid and if it is awarded the purchase order or contract by the City, in 

connection with any purchase order or contract, it shall not be in violation of any provision of 

Section 13-52 of this Ordinance. 

 

Sec. 5. Fines and Penalties. 

 

In response to a violation of any provision of Section 13-52 of this Ordinance, the City may impose 

the following fines and penalties: 

 

A. A fine of two thousand dollars ($2,000) for each separate offense or violation.   

 

B. The City is also authorized to take any other action, or exercise any other remedy or assess 

any other fines or penalties as may be allowed or permitted at law or in equity. 

 
C. A ny and all remedies shall be cumulative and two or more remedies may be exercised at the 

same time. 

Sec. 6.     Severability. 

 

The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable. If any clause, sentence, 

paragraph, subdivision, section or part of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person, 

individual, corporation, firm, partnership, entity or circumstance shall be adjudged by any court of 

competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unconstitutional, such order or judgment shall not affect, 

impair, effect or invalidate the remainder of this Ordinance, but shall be confined in its operation to 

the clause, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, section or part of this Ordinance or in its application to 

the person, individual, corporation, firm, partnership, entity or circumstance directly involved in the 

controversy in which such order or judgment shall be rendered. 

 

Sec. 7. Effective Date. 

 

This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days after publication in a newspaper having 

14



3  

substantial, continuous circulation within the City. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED ON FIRST READINGTHIS THE 16TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2022. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING THIS THE 6TH DAY OF 

SEPTEMBER, 2022.  

 

 

 

       ___________________________________ 

       Oscar D. Montoya Sr., Mayor 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED: 

 

 

__________________________________  ____________________________________ 

Joselynn Castillo, City Secretary   Martie Garcia-Vela, City Attorney

15



9A

16



17



 

AGENDA ITEM NO. _9C___ 
  

CONSENT ITEM :   
 

 

DATE: August 10, 2022 

FROM: Alberto Perez 

ITEM: Management Items  

 

Discussion and possible action to direct City Manager to update the City, School and 
Neighborhood maintenance initiative. 

 

 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 
With City of Mercedes school kids getting ready to head back to school, the City Of Mercedes will need to 
ensure walkways kids take to and from school are maintained free of weeds and tall grass for their safety 
and security.     
 
 
BOARD REVIEW/CITIZEN FEEDBACK:  N/A 
 
ALTERNATIVES/OPTIONS:  N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   N/A 
 
 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  Martie Garcia 
 
ATTACHMENTS: N/A 
 

 
DRAFT MOTION:  Move to approve the updated City, School and Neighborhood maintenance initiative.      
 

18



AGENDA ITEM NO. ____ 

CONSENT ITEM :  NO 

DATE: August 16, 2022 

FROM: Nereida Perez, Finance Director 

ITEM: Discussion and Possible Action to Vote on Proposed Tax Rate for 2021 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
The adopted property tax rate for 2021 was $0.7750/$100 and staff is recommending we keep the property 
tax rate the same for 2022. 

The tax rate would be $0.7750/100, with $0.3132 deposited into the I & S fund for our debt payments and 
$0.4618 deposited into the M & O for general operations. 

There is a slight increase on the debt rate due to the payment for Series 2021.  The payment for year 2021 
was a partial payment and for 2022 we will be making our first full payment. 

A vote is required by the governing body on the proposed tax rate so that we can publish the tax notice. 

The City of Mercedes is also required to hold one public hearing before the adoption of the tax rate. 

Below are the proposed dates for the public hearing and adoption of the tax rate: 

Public Hearing-September 6th 
Meeting to Adopt tax Rate-September 13th 

BOARD REVIEW/CITIZEN FEEDBACK:  N/A 

ALTERNATIVES/OPTIONS:  N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Fiscal year 2022-2023 

Proposed Expenditure/(Revenue): Account Number(s): 

Finance Review by:  Nereida Perez, Finance Director 

LEGAL REVIEW:   

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Benchmark rates provided by the County
2. Calculations on increase

DRAFT MOTION:  Move to approve proposed tax rate. 

9B

19



2022 Governing Body Summary #1A*
Benchmark 2022 Tax Rates

City of Mercedes
Date: 07/29/2022 04:17 PM 

DESCRIPTION OF TAX RATE TAX RATE PER $100 THIS YEAR'S TAX LEVY** ADDITIONAL TAX LEVY

No-New-Revenue Tax Rate $0.7317 $5,295,572

One Percent $100 Tax Increase*** $0.7390 $5,348,405 $52,833

One Cent per $100 Tax Increase*** $0.741700 $5,367,945 $72,373

De Minimis Rate $0.8564 $6,198,070 $902,498

VAR NOT adjusted for Unused 
Increment Rate 

$0.8087 $5,852,848 $557,276

VAR adjusted for Unused Increment 
Rate

$0.8622 $6,240,047 $944,475

Last Year's Tax Rate $0.7750 $5,608,949 $313,377

Proposed Tax Rate $0 $0 $-5,295,572

*These figures are provided as estimates of possible outcomes resulting from varying the tax rate. Please be aware that these are only estimates and should not 
be used alone in making budgetary decisions. 
**Tax levies are calculated using line 21 of the No-New-Revenue Tax Rate Worksheet and this year's frozen tax levy on homesteads of the elderly or disabled. 
***Tax increase compared to no-new-revenue tax rate. 

20



CITY OF MERCEDES, TEXAS
SCHEDULE TO COMPUTE ESTIMATED
PROPERTY TAX REVENUE FOR

FISCAL 2022 - 2023 BUDGET
2022-2023 2022-2023 2021-2022

0% Increase CERTIFIED CERTIFIED
CERTIFIED TOTALS REPORT DATE: 07/28/2022

M & O I & S M & O I & S M & O I & S
FUND FUND TOTAL FUND FUND TOTAL FUND FUND TOTAL

FROM 2021 CERTIFIED TOTALS (w/out adjustments) 723,735,400$      

APPROVED TAX RATES: 0.4618$                   0.3132$                    0.7750$                    0.4185$                    0.3132$                    0.7317$                    0.4678$                    0.3072$                    0.7750$                    

ESTIMATED PROPERTY TAX REVENUES 3,342,210                2,266,739                 5,608,949                 3,028,833                 2,266,739                 5,295,572                 3,161,086                 2,075,857                 5,236,943                 

ADD:
ACTUAL TAX FROM 2016 CERTIFIED TOTALS -                                -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  

TOTAL ESTIMATED PROPERTY TAX REVENUE 3,342,210                2,266,739                 5,608,949                 3,028,833                 2,266,739                 5,295,572                 3,161,086                 2,075,857                 5,236,943                 

ESTIMATED COLLECTION RATE / COLLECTION $: 96.00% 3,208,522       2,176,070                 5,384,591                 2,907,679         2,176,070                 5,083,749                 3,034,643         1,992,822                 5,027,465                 

LESS:
ESTIMATED TIRZ FUNDING 35,868,270           -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  

TOTAL ESTIMATED PAYMENTS FROM M&O FUND -                                -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  
NET PROPERTY TAX REVENUES (ACCRUAL FOR BUDGET) 3,208,522$             2,176,070$               5,384,591$               2,907,679$               2,176,070$               5,083,749$               3,034,643$               1,992,822$               5,027,465$               

Home Value Increase
Property Tax Rate Comparison 2022-2023 No change in Home Value Tax Rate Home Value Tax Rate
2022 Certified Totals 723,735,400     80,000                  0.7750                  620.00                  100,000               0.7750                  775.00                  
2021 Certified Totals 675,734,556     80,000                  0.7750                  620.00                  80,000                  0.7750                  620.00                  
Change from PY 7.10% 48,000,844        313,377                     Yrly -$                      Yrly 155$                     

Mthly -$                      Mthly 12.92$                  
2021-2022 2020-2021

Tax Rate $0.7750/$100 $0.7750/$100 Home Value Decrease Tax Rate
No New Revenue Tax Rate $0.7317/$100 $0.7090/$100 70,000                  0.7750                  542.50                  
No New Reveneu Maintenance & Operations Tax Rate: $0.4742/$100 $0.4761/$100 80,000                  0.7750                  620.00                  
Voter Approval Maintenance & Operations Rate $0.5856/$100 $0.5490/$100 Yrly (78)$                      
Debt Rate: $0.3132/$100 $0.2535/$100 Mthly (6)$                         
Voter Approval Tax Rate $0.8988/$100 $0.8025/$100
Voter Approval Tax Rate adjusted for Unused Increment $0.8622/$100 $0.8286/$100
De minimis rate: Notice & Hearing Limit $0.8564/$100 $00000/$100

Total Debt for 2022-2023 Total Debt for 2021-2022
General Fund 2,279,065                 General Fund 2,079,095                 
Enterprise Fund 947,583                     Enterprise Fund 777,576                     
Total Debt 2019-2020 3,226,648                 Total Debt 2018-2019 2,856,671                 

PROPOSED TAX RATE No New Revenue Tax Rate APPROVED TAX RATE ALLOCATION

96%

21



 

AGENDA ITEM NO. _9C___ 
  

CONSENT ITEM :   
 

 

DATE: August 10, 2022 

FROM: Alberto Perez 

ITEM: Management Items  

 

Discussion and possible action to direct City Manager to update the City, School and 
Neighborhood maintenance initiative. 

 

 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 
With City of Mercedes school kids getting ready to head back to school, the City Of Mercedes will need to 
ensure walkways kids take to and from school are maintained free of weeds and tall grass for their safety 
and security.     
 
 
BOARD REVIEW/CITIZEN FEEDBACK:  N/A 
 
ALTERNATIVES/OPTIONS:  N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   N/A 
 
 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  Martie Garcia 
 
ATTACHMENTS: N/A 
 

 
DRAFT MOTION:  Move to approve the updated City, School and Neighborhood maintenance initiative.      
 

22



AGENDA ITEM NO. ____ 

CONSENT ITEM :  NO 

DATE: August 16, 2021 

FROM: Pedro Estrada, Chief of Police 

ITEM: Approval of Interlocal Agreement between Mercedes Independent School 
District and the Mercedes Police Department 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Attached is the Interlocal Agreement regarding Police 
Services for Mercedes ISD. The contract has been reviewed by the city's legal team, as well 
as Mercedes ISD legal team.  
The Mercedes Police Department is respectfully suggesting approval of the Interlocal 
Agreement for Fiscal Year 2022-2023.  

BOARD REVIEW/CITIZEN FEEDBACK:  N/A 

ALTERNATIVES/OPTIONS:  N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT:   N/A 

Proposed Expenditure/(Revenue): Account Number(s): 

Finance Review by:   

LEGAL REVIEW:  Martie Garcia Vela 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Interlocal Cooperation Agreement for Police Services

DRAFT MOTION:  Move to approve the Interlocal Agreement. 

10A

23



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

FOR POLICE SERVICES 

 

This INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR POLICE SERVICES (Agreement) is made by 

and between the City of Mercedes, Texas (Contractor) and the Mercedes Independent 

School District (Agency) on this the day _____ of August, 2022. 

 

 

PREMISES 

 

Whereas, Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code authorizes local governments to 

contract with each other to provide governmental functions and services, and 

 

Whereas, the Texas Education Code §37.081 gives the Board of Trustees of AGENCY the 

power to employ security personnel and commissioned peace officers to carry out the 

effects of that Chapter, and 

 

Whereas, the City of Mercedes, Texas is a Texas Municipality and Home Rule City as set 

forth in VTCA Government Codes §791.003 (4), and 

 

Whereas, the Mercedes Independent School District is a Texas School District and local 

government entity as set forth in the VTCA Government Code §791.003, and 

 

Whereas, the Mercedes Independent School District School Resource Officers and the City 

of Mercedes all have the authority to perform law enforcement actions within their 

respective jurisdictional areas, and 

 

Whereas, the Parties are of the opinion that achieving the objectives of law enforcement, 

the protection of students, and maintenance of a safe learning environment within the 

Mercedes Independent School District can be facilitated by establishing a cooperative 

approach to law enforcement, and that the performance of this Agreement is in the 

common interest of both parties and that the division of cost fairly compensates the 

performing party for the services under this contract, 

 

Whereas, the parties, in performing governmental functions or in paying for the 

performance of governmental functions hereunder shall make the performance, or those 

payments from current revenues legally available to each party: 

 

Now therefore, in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants herein contained, it 

as agreed, under the authority of Section 791.001-791.029 of the Texas Government code, 

as follows:  

24



AGREEMENT 

 

 

ARTICLE 1. STATEMENT OF WORK: 

 

CONTRACTOR agrees to perform the following, in a good professional manner: 

 

I.   CONTRACTOR shall assign and provide to AGENCY'S campuses Five (5) Texas 

Certified Police Officers during the 2022-2023 school year in accordance with the 

dates set forth in Article 5 of this agreement. Specific campus and time assignments 

will be mutually agreed to by the Contractor and AGENCY. Time assignments are 

not limited to any particular time of day. CONTRACTOR agrees that officers may 

be assigned to sporting events or other extra-curricular activities. 

 

II.   CONTRACTOR will Assign contracted Police Offices to provide police presence 

on and around school campuses and all AGENCY property, including, without 

limitation, traffic enforcement and pedestrian crosswalk policing, etc. The Chief of 

Police shall assign the duties of each officer taking into account the safety of each 

student, school district employee, and non-school person.  

 

III.   CONTRACTOR shall ensure that assigned officers comply with all departmental 

policies and procedures, including but not limited to, city policies and state and 

federal statutes, procedures and directives. 

 

IV.   Contracted Police Officers may execute investigative and arrest authority.  

 

V.   Contracted Police Officers shall function as Certified Peace Officers of the State of 

Texas and shall comply with all duties and obligations, which they have under state 

and federal law as licensed peace officers. 

 

VI.   CONTRACTOR will supply five (5) police vehicles as available. 

 

VII.   AGENCY agrees to pay overtime for additional officers for sporting events, 

parades, other extra-curricular activities that require more than the number of 

Contracted Police Officers.  

 

 

ARTICLE 2. OBJECTIVES: 

 

CONTRACTOR with the cooperation of the AGENCY is employed to carry out the 

purposes of Chapter 37, Texas Education Code, Safe Schools to include, but not limited to 

the following: 

 

1. Provide a safe learning environment by fulfilling their obligations as licensed peace 

officer. 

 

25



 

2. Serve as visible deterrent, through their presence and action as peace officers to 

reduce drug abuse, alcohol abuse and other crime amongst students. 

 

3. Educate faculty in the following: 

• Identification of gangs and their effects 

• Identification of drugs and their effects 

• Training and preparation for safety measures; active shooter training(s) 

 

4. Participate in other school activities and events when appropriate. 

 

5. Report incidents (in writing) of a delinquent criminal nature to the campus 

Principal and the Chief of Police. 

 

6. Take positive enforcement action as a law enforcement officer when confronted by 

a violation of Federal Law, State Law and any City Ordinance. 

 

7. Promote and support organizational strategies of the district to address the causes 

and reduce the fear of crime and social disorder through problem solving tactics 

and their work as peace officers within the district. 

 

 

 ARTICLE 3.  DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF AGENCY: 

 

The AGENCY will provide the following to the CONTRACTOR: 

 

1. Reimburse the City of Mercedes for all costs associated with Salaries and Fringe 

Benefits for the Contracted Peace Officers. 

 

2. Will assign office space on campus. 

 

3. Access to telephones. 

 

4. Administrative and clerical support whenever possible from the campus and central 

office. 

 

5. Supplies and materials within an approved budget 

 

 

6. Costs associated with uniforms and training as needed to maintain school-based 

policing; and 

 

7. Other support as requested. 

 

 

ARTICLE 4.   JURISDICTION AND SCOPE OF DUTIES OF EMPLOYED OFFICERS 

26



 

The AGENCY hereby determines that the jurisdiction of any officer exercising the terms 

under this agreement shall include all territory, within the boundaries of the AGENCY and 

also all property outside the boundaries of the AGENCY that is owned, leased or rented by 

or otherwise under the control of the AGENCY. The AGENCY further determines that the 

Police Officers assigned under this agreement shall have the following powers: 

 

I.   All the powers, privileges and immunities as police officers when working as police 

officers for the AGENCY.  

 

II.   The powers to enforce all laws, including municipal ordinances, and state laws and 

may, in accordance with Chapter 52, Texas Family Code, take a juvenile into 

custody. 

 

III.   The power to enforce any and all laws of the State of Texas and the rules of the 

AGENCY which have a direct bearing on the safety and welfare of students within 

the AGENCY. 

 

IV.   The power, jurisdiction and lawful authority to provide police services under the 

terms of this agreement even if said police officers are off duty. However, nothing 

in this agreement shall require any Mercedes Police Officer to provide police 

services pursuant to this agreement if off duty.  

 

V.   With regards to the jurisdiction of police officers exercising their authority in areas 

owned, leased or rented by or otherwise under the control of the AGENCY not 

located within the city limits of the CONTRACTOR. Police Officers will exercise 

their authority and shall detain any juvenile or adult for the violations of state law 

and then contact the appropriate law enforcement agency having jurisdiction of the 

AGENCY School in question for the purpose of proceeding forward with the 

proper reporting and processing of cases to the Hidalgo County Juvenile Probation 

Department of the Hidalgo County District Attorney's Office for prosecution.  

 

VI.   Any other powers necessary to carry out the effects of Texas Education Code 

Chapter 37, particularly 37.081. 

 

 

ARTICLE 5.  TERMS AND DATES OF CONTRACT: 

 

 The period of performance of the agreement shall commence on the 1st day of September, 

2022 and shall end on the 31st day of August, 2023. This is based on a regular City of 

Mercedes Police Officer work year. No cost will be incurred or charged on the agreement 

prior to the starting date or after the ending date. All days are payable based on eight (8) 

hour day terms. 

 

 

 

27



ARTICLE 6.  SUPPLEMENTAL DUTY PAY: 

 

Agency agrees to pay supplemental duty pay for the services of any and all uniformed, 

sworn law enforcement personnel for the purposes of providing security and crowd control 

for athletic and special events sponsored by the Agency.  Arrangements will be made 

between the Safe Schools Coordinator and/or the Athletic Director.  The Contractor will 

provide the number of officers reasonably necessary as requested by the Agency for any 

such event subject to availability of officers.  The Agency shall reimburse Contractor for 

the actual rate of pay Contractor expends and/or is responsible for compensating individual 

officer(s) for the time spent in providing Agency Supplemental Duty services. 

 

 

ARTICLE 7.  CONSIDERATION: 

 

It is estimated that the total cost of the basic agreement (excluding supplemental duty pay) 

will not exceed $336,669.45 and the CONTRACTOR agrees to use its best effort to 

perform all work described for this estimated cost. If at any time it is determined by the 

CONTRACTOR that the total cost for performance of said work will be greater than the 

above estimated cost, then CONTRACTOR shall notify AGENCY of such excess cost, 

giving its revised estimate of the total cost. AGENCY is not obligated to pay any amount 

exceeding the estimated cost indicated in this section unless such amount is approved by 

AGENCY in writing before the cost is incurred nor is the CONTRACTOR obligated to 

perform any such work after such determination until approved of such excess amount. 

 

Item Qty Unit Cost Total 

Certified Police 

Officers 

5 $67,333.89 (annual salary 

including FICA/MED and fringe 

benefits) 

$336,669.45 

    

TOTAL   $336,669.45 

 

Mercedes ISD (agrees to reimburse the City of Mercedes for costs associated with fuel, 

maintenance and/or repair of vehicles and equipment incurred during the time the 

Contracted Peace Officers are on duty for Mercedes ISD. 

 

 

ARTICLE 8. PAYMENT: 

 

Payment for services will be processed only when proper documentation has been provided 

for the AGENCY business office for payment. Proper business accounting will be utilized. 

CONTRACTOR shall bill AGENCY on a monthly basis and shall not bill AGENCY for a 

service period that exceeds thirty days (30) of service to AGENCY. Once proper 

documentation has been provided to the AGENCY, payment will be processed within 15-

30 days. 

 

 

   

28



ARTICLE 9. MEDIATION: 

 

It is the policy of the State of Texas to encourage resolution of any disputes through 

alternative dispute resolution procedures such as non-binding mediation. Any dispute 

    between the parties to this agreement, which is not resolved through informal discussion, 

    may be submitted to a mutually acceptable mediation service or provider for non-binding 

mediation. The to the mediation shall bear the mediation costs equally. This paragraph 

does not preclude a party from seeking legal or equitable relief from a court of competent 

jurisdiction. 

 

 

ARTICLE 10. VENUE AND JURISDICTION: 

 

The parties acknowledge that exclusive jurisdiction and venue for any such action for 

breach of this agreement shall be Hidalgo County, Texas. 

 

 

ARTICLE 11.  MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT: 

 

This document constitutes the entire agreement between the AGENCY and 

CONTRACTOR and may be modified only by written agreement executed by both the 

AGENCY and CONTRACTOR.   

 

 

ARTICLE 12.  DUTIES: 

Officers shall only be assigned duties by the AGENCY which are consistent with their 

existing obligations as licensed police officers under state law and which arise pursuant to 

their employment under Chapter 37, Texas Education Code (Exhibit C). 

 

 

ARTICLE 13. NO WAIVER OF GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY: 

 

Neither the AGENCY nor CONTRACTOR, via this contract, waive governmental 

immunity from suit, or from liability, except as expressly set forth by the Texas Legislature 

in the Texas Local Government Code. The fact that the AGENCY and the 

CONTRACTOR have entered into this agreement shall not in any way, constitute a 

deliberate waiver of immunity by either entity, which immunities are expressly reserved by 

both parties. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

29



ARTICLE 14.  CITY NOT LIABLE FOR ACTIONS DIRECTED BY DISTRICT: 

 

CONTRACTOR shall not be liable to the AGENCY or to any third party for any act or 

omission Mercedes of any Mercedes Police Officer who is at the time acting under the 

direction of any officer, administrator or employee of the district. 

 

CONTRACTOR: 

 

City of Mercedes 

 

 

_____________________________  _____________________________ 

Oscar D. Montoya     Alberto Perez  

Mayor      City Manager 

 

 

____________________________  ____________________________ 

Pedro Estrada      Joselynn Castillo 

Chief of Police      City Secretary  

 

 

AGENCY: 

 

Mercedes Independent School District 

 

 

_____________________________ 

President, Mercedes I.S.D. 

Board of Trustees 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Mercedes I.S.D. Superintendent of Schools 

30



10B

31



 

1 
 

 

 

STATE OF TEXAS  §      INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

 

COUNTY OF HIDALGO § 

 

SERVICE CONTRACT § 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT is made this ___ day of ________, 2022, by and between the CITY 

OF WESLACO, a Home Rule Municipal Corporation, hereinafter referred to as “CITY”  located 

at  255 S. Kansas Avenue, Weslaco, Hidalgo County, Texas 78596 and CITY OF MERCEDES  

a Home Rule Municipal Corporation, hereinafter referred to as “MERCEDES”, located at 400 

South Ohio St. Mercedes, Hidalgo County, Texas 78570. 

 

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, MERCEDES desires to engage with CITY for the provision of certain 

professional services, therefore CITY and MERCEDES mutually agree as follows: 

 

SECTION I 

CONTRACT AGREEMENT 

 

CITY agrees to provide MERCEDES Animal Control Operations and Impoundment as 

follows:  

 

A. Impoundment services and all available information pertinent to said services, including 

reports and any other related data. CITY shall be responsible for the professional quality, 

technical accuracy, and the coordination of services furnished to MERCEDES.  

 

B.  CITY shall perform the professional services necessary to accomplish the work specified 

in this Agreement in accordance with all applicable State and Federal requirements in effect 

on the date of execution. 

 

C.  CITY will provide blank door tags and MERCEDES must provide individual door tags for 

each animal brought into CITY’S facility. 

 

D. MERCEDES must submit all documentation needed for owner relinquished animals and 

quarantine animals, which include owner relinquish forms and dog bite reports. 

 

E. MERCEDES must give CITY prompt written notice whenever MERCEDES observes or 

otherwise becomes aware of any deficiencies in CITY services. 

 

F. Hours of operation: 

• Citizens of Mercedes may drop off animals at the shelter from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 

p.m. Monday through Friday and 9:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. Saturdays and Sundays.  

 

32



 

2 
 

 

                                                             SECTION II 

CALL NOTIFICATION / REPRESENTATIVE  

 

 Each party will have a designated representative to receive any notices under this agreement and 

to act on their behalf as follows: 

 

 i) CITY OF MERCEDES 

 Joaquin Hernandez, Public Works Director 

400 South Ohio St.   

Mercedes, Texas 78570 

 

ii) CITY OF WESLACO 

 Jose Angel Pedraza, Health Official. 

255 S. Kansas Avenue 

Weslaco, Texas 78596 

 

 No other representative from MERCEDES may request services from CITY.  

 

All notices required or permitted herein must be in writing and shall be forwarded by United States 

Mail, by Registered or Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested, Postage Prepaid, to the party 

whom notice is to be given at the address set forth above or to such address as either party hereto 

may designate to the other by notice from time to time for the purpose.  Notices shall be deemed 

given upon deposit in a receptacle of the United States Postal Service. 

 

  

 

     SECTION III 

PAYMENTS AND FEES 

 

             MERCEDES agrees to pay CITY for services contracted herein as follows: 

 

 

A. MERCEDES shall pay CITY $65.00 per animal impounded at CITY’S shelter. 

 

B. MERCEDES shall pay CITY $55.00 per deceased animal taken to CITY’S shelter. 

 

C. MERCEDES citizens seeking to reclaim animals shall pay fees as set by CITY. 

 

D. MERCEDES citizens who drop off animals at the Weslaco Animal Care Facility will not 

be assessed a fee. 

 

E. MERCEDES shall pay CITY $150.00 to tranquilize or euthanize an animal on site 

 

F. MERCEDES shall pay CITY $250.00 to quarantine an animal.    

 

33



 

3 
 

 

Invoicing shall be completed in accordance with CITY’S Finance Department regulations and 

an activity log will be provided with MERCEDES’S invoice. 

 

     MERCEDES will approve all work submitted and authorize all payments made for services 

within    30 days from receipt of CITY’S invoice. 

 

 

    SECTION IV 

CHOICE OF LAW 

 

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas.  Venue and jurisdiction shall 

lie in Hidalgo County, Texas. 

 

SECTION V 

TERM OF AGREEMENT AND TERMINATION 

A. This Agreement shall be for an initial term of one year, effective _________ __, 2022 and 

shall continue in full-force and effect through October 1, 2023.   

B.   Either party to this Agreement shall have the right to terminate this Contract at any time   

without cause after 30 days written notice and upon payment to CITY for services rendered 

and obligations incurred to date.  

 

SECTION VI 

NON-APPROPRIATIONS 

 

If MERCEDES cannot appropriate sufficient funding to fulfill it’s contractual obligations under 

this agreement, then CITY has the right to terminate this contract by providing ten (10) days 

written notice to MERCEDES. 

 

 

      SECTION VII 

MEDIATION 

 

It is the intent of the parties that litigation be avoided, and in order to allow for the quick resolution 

of any and all disputes, if any, the parties hereby agree that any claims, demands or disputes that 

cannot be amicably resolved between the parties upon written request by either party shall be 

submitted within two (2) weeks to a neutral, trained third party for assistance in dispute resolution 

by means of non-binding mediation. The parties agree to share cost of mediation equally. 

 

 

                                                                  SECTION VIII 

                                                             HOLD HARMLESS  

 

To the extent permitted under the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas City Of Mercedes 

agrees to indemnify and hold harmless and defend City, its agents, employees and officers from 

34



 

4 
 

and against any claim, loss, damage, liability and expense, including reasonable attorney’s fees, 

incurred or suffered by it, by reason of any and all claims, demands or causes of action asserted or 

that may be asserted, against any or all of the above named parties, whether alleging intentional or 

negligent acts or omissions, and whether seeking compensatory or punitive damages, and 

involving, arising out of, or in any manner related to this agreement. 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, CITY and MERCEDES have executed three (3) copies of 

this Agreement as of the date set forth above. 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF WESLACO 

 

BY: _______________________________ 

      David Suarez, Mayor 

   

     255 S Kansas  

     Weslaco, Texas 78596 

     Phone:  956.968.3181 

     Fax:  956.973.3128 

              

ATTEST: 

 

BY:________________________________ 

 Norma Cantu, City Secretary 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 

Juan E. Gonzalez 

Attorney at Law 

 

____________________________________ 

City Attorney 

                          

 

CITY OF MERCEDES 

 

 

BY:                                                                _________________________________________ 

        Oscar Montoya, Mayor   

 
City Of Mercedes 
400 S Ohio St. 

35



 

5 
 

Mercedes, Texas 78570 
956-565-3114 

         

 

ATTEST:  

 

BY:                                                              _________________________________ 

         Joselynn Castillo, City Secretary 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 

 

____________________________ 

Alberto Perez, City Manager   

36



10C

37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



 

AGENDA ITEM NO. _10D___ 
  

CONSENT ITEM :   
 

 

DATE: August 16, 2022 

FROM: Alberto Perez, City Manager 

ITEM: Bids/Contracts 

 

Discussion and possible action to Enter into contract for Engineering Services 

 

 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 
Bid packets will be provided for the Commission to review.  
 
 
BOARD REVIEW/CITIZEN FEEDBACK:  N/A 
 
ALTERNATIVES/OPTIONS:  N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   N/A 
 
 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  Martie Garcia 
 
ATTACHMENTS: N/A 
 

 
DRAFT MOTION:   
 

107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



 

       
Memo 

To: Alberto Perez, City Manager  

From: Marisol Vidales, Library Director 

CC: Javier Ramirez, Assistant City Manager 

Date: August 8, 2022 

Re: Library Department Monthly Report    

Attached you will find the Library Department’s monthly statistical report, please let me know 
if you have any questions regarding the information. Also, Library Staff participated in the 
following meetings, trainings, and events during the month of July 2022. 

 
Meetings 

• Department Head Meeting (7/6) – Marisol Vidales  

• Summer Reading Program Review Meeting (7/6) – Marisol Vidales, Michelle Muniz 
and Frank Rivas 

• TSLAC & Literacy Minnesota Grant Evaluation Meeting (7/7) – Tristan Garza, 
Anthony Cardenas, Michelle Muniz & Marisol Vidales 

• UT Austin & IC2 Research Interview for Digital Navigator Grant (7/7) – Tristan Garza, 
Anthony Cardenas, & Marisol Vidales 

• Insight Meeting regarding server (7/7) -Marisol Vidales & Michelle Muniz  

• Meeting with City Manager regarding Farm Fest, ECF Funding, & Library Training 
(7/8) – Marisol Vidales  

• Televon Introduction Meeting (7/11) – Marisol Vidales 

• Digital Navigator Cohort Meeting (7/12) – Tristan Garza & Anthony Cardenas 

• The Library Corporation & Hidalgo County Library System Meeting (7/19) – Marisol 
Vidales 

• Back-to-School Event Planning Meeting (7/19) – Michelle Muniz 

• City Commission Meeting (7/19) – Marisol Vidales 

• Department Head Meeting (7/20) – Marisol Vidales  

• National Night Out Event Planning Meeting (7/20) – Marisol Vidales 

• Hidalgo County Library System Meeting (7/21) – Marisol Vidales & Michelle Muniz 

• Mercedes Historic Preservation Commission Meeting (7/21) – Marisol Vidales & 
Michelle Muniz 

• Televon & Managed Service Meeting (7/25) – Marisol Vidales  

• Nature Smart Library Planning Meeting (7/28) – Marisol Vidales 

• Libraries Connecting Texas Webinar (7/28) – Marisol Vidales 

130



⚫ Page 2 

 

• Savannah Messaging Meeting (7/28) – Daniela Alejo & Michelle Muniz  
 

 
Trainings 

• Food Handling Certification (7/14) – Marisol Vidales, Michelle Muniz, Mary Jane 
Hernandez, Maria Isabel Mendoza, Daniela Alejo, Janie Palacios, Tristan Garza, 
Frank Rivas, Flora Ramirez, and Isabel Vallejo. 

• Phone Etiquette Training (7/14) – Same as above.  

• Texans Right to Read (7/21) – Marisol Vidales & Michelle Muniz  
 

   
Outreach  

• Mercedes Recreation Center Story Time (7/5) – Frank Rivas  
Children: 28  Adults: 3 

• Mercedes Recreation Center Story Time (7/12) – Frank Rivas 
Children: 34  Adults: 3 

• Mercedes Recreation Center Story Time (7/19) – Frank Rivas 
Children: 32  Adults:3 

• Mercedes Recreation Center NASA Story Time (6/28) – Dr. Samuel Garcia & Frank 
Rivas 
Children: 38  Adults: 9 

• HEB Children’s Day Event (7/30) – Frank Rivas & Daniela Alejo prepared & 
participated in this event on behalf of the library. 
Children: 34  Adults: 5 
 

 
Events 

• Digital Navigator Computer Class (7/5) – The class curriculum is created and taught 
by Tristan Garza and Anthony Cardenas.  
Adults: 12 

• Digital Navigator Computer Class (7/6) – The class curriculum is created and taught 
by Tristan Garza and Anthony Cardenas. 
Adults: 2 

• Kid’s Yoga (7/6) – This event was organized by Frank Rivas and taught by Anthony 
Garza 
Children: 11 Adults: 8 

• Story Time & Craft by Behavioral Health Solutions of South Texas (7/7) – This event 
was organized by Frank Rivas 
Children: 24 Adults: 10   

• Teen Art Class (7/11) – The class is taught by Diane Roman-Goldsberry 
Teens:6 

• Digital Navigator Computer Class (7/12) – The class curriculum is created and taught 
by Tristan Garza and Anthony Cardenas 
Adults: 15 

• Story Time & Craft by Easter Seals (7/12) – This event was organized by Frank Rivas 
Children: 35 Adults: 11 

• Food Distribution Event (7/13) – Flora Ramirez attended and assisted in this event.  

• Gateway Travel Center Groundbreaking (7/13) – This event was attended by Marisol 
Vidales  

131



⚫ Page 3 

 

• McDonald’s Play Van (7/13) – This event was organized by Frank Rivas 
Children: 25 Adults: 10  

• Digital Navigator Computer Class (7/13) – The class curriculum is created and taught 
by Tristan Garza and Anthony Cardenas. 
Adults:7 

• Sing 2 Sing-Along (7/14) – This event was planned and prepared by Frank Rivas 
Children: 38 Adults: 18 

• Teen Art Class (7/14) – The class is taught by Diane Roman-Goldsberry 
Teens: 6 

• Sonic Ribbon Cutting (7/15) – This event was attended by Michelle Muniz 

• Teen Art Class (7/18) – The class is taught by Diane Roman-Goldsberry 
Teens: 6 

• Digital Navigator Computer Class (7/19) – The class curriculum is created and taught 
by Tristan Garza and Anthony Cardenas 
Adults: 16 

• Digital Navigator Computer Class (7/20) - The class curriculum is created and taught 
by Tristan Garza and Anthony Cardenas 
Adults: 9 

• K-Pop Night (7/20) – This event is organized & hosted by Michelle Muniz 
Teens: 13 Adults: 3 

• Teen Art Class (7/21) – The class is taught by Diane Roman-Goldsberry 
Teens: 6 

• Story Time Unidos Contra la Diabetes (7/21) – This event was organized by Frank 
Rivas 
Children: 12 Adults: 2  

• Dr. Rolando Hinojosa-Smith Tribute (7/25) – This event was organized by Marisol 
Vidales & Frank Rivas but hosted by Dr. Samuel Garcia & Dr. Jaime Mejia 
Adults: 27  Children: 4 

• NASA Missions to the Moon (7/26) – This event was organized by Marisol Vidales & 
Frank Rivas but hosted by Dr. Samuel Garcia 
Adults:10 Children:21  

• Digital Navigator Computer Class (7/26) – The class curriculum is created and taught 
by Tristan Garza and Anthony Cardenas 
Adults: 13 

• Digital Navigator Computer Class (7/27) - The class curriculum is created and taught 
by Tristan Garza and Anthony Cardenas 
Adults: 9 

• Teen Art Class (7/27) – The class is taught by Diane Roman-Goldsberry 
Teens: 6 

• Region One ESC ESL Registration & Orientation (7/28) – This event was managed 
by Region One 
Adults: 4 

• Book Club (7/28) – This event is organized by Michelle Muniz & Marisol Vidales 
Adults: 5  

 
 
Other Projects/Duties 
 
Café 

132



⚫ Page 4 

 

• We sold 695 individual items for the 20 days that we were open and we made 
$2,470.57 in sales. 

 
 

Marketing (The majority of these items involve the creation of flyers, taking and posting 
photos, filming and editing videos, responding to citizens via direct message, and 
interacting with the public on social media platforms.) 

  

• Created 3 newsletters for July New Releases for Books, Gallery 434, and July 
Library & Café News. 

• Created a total of 40 flyers for the month of May for the library, café, city & HCLS.     

• Created 2 book rivers on TLC Catalog to honor monthly observances highlighting 
our collection which were Self Care Month & Staycationing 

• Created 1 shelve in cloudLibrary in honor of monthly observances highlighting our 
collection which was Harry Potter’s Birthday.  

• Created 2 book displays for the month of July – “Worst Vacations Ever” & “The 
cover was red…no, it was white … or was it blue?” 

• Posted 287 items across Facebook, Instagram, and Twitter for the Library, Café, 
HCLS, and City.  

 
 Administration/Collection Management/Development 

• Ordered the server using the ALA Covid Relief Fund. Working on ordering the OS 
license. The project is scheduled for completion on September 30th.  

• Reviewed budget and prepared several budget amendments to continue ordering 
where necessary.  

• Reviewed and submitted changes to the Texas State Library Archives Commission 
Annual Report.  

• Received over $26,000 in Emergency Connectivity Funding to obtain hotspots for 
circulation and continue to provide hotspots for students in the Digital Navigator 
Grant Program. The next step is to develop a circulation policy and promote the 
hotspot program. The estimated completion date is August 26th.  

• Met with Victoria Eschete and helped in the planning stages of South Texas Farm 
Fest as well as presented information on the event to the Mercedes Historic 
Preservation Commission and City Commission. The event is scheduled for 
November 5th.  

• Have been meeting with Texas Children in Nature organization to develop a grant 
for nature backpacks & a seed library. The grant application is due in late 
September.  

• Worked on revising our New Cardholder newsletter. The newsletter will now be 
distributed in four parts in order to provide more information regarding our services 
over a longer period of time and remain in the patron’s mind. The first revised 
newsletter will go out August 3rd.  

• Reviewed donations received to determine which items should be added to the 
collection, added to our fundraiser sale cart, or discarded. 

• Created and submitted the second Request for Funds for the Digital Navigator 
Grant which entails providing purchase orders, invoices, check stubs, etc.  

• Prepared agenda, minutes, and other documentation for Mercedes Historic 
Preservation Commission meeting and hosted.  

133



⚫ Page 5 

 

• Worked on reviewing our current cost for café products, revised pricing for various 
items to reflect rising costs of the goods, and updated the café register and menu to 
reflect the new pricing.  

• Installed one new art exhibit for the month of July which was: “Ocean of 
Possibilities.” Submissions were part of the Summer Reading Program art contest.  

• Started the process for a 501c3 under the United for Libraries Association. 
Estimated completion date is October 28th.  

• Worked with Region One ESC to reestablish ESL classes by selecting the best 
dates, promoting the classes, reserving the Texas Room for orientation, and for all 
the future classes. The next steps are submitting the signed MOU and continue to 
promote the class. The first class is scheduled to begin on August 15th. 

• Met with Mr. Silvestre Moreno to determine the best dates for his constitutional law 
classes. Helped him by creating a registration sheet, flyer to promote his class, and 
finally reserving the Texas Room for his classes which will begin on August 15th.  

• Senior Cataloger continued to delete patrons that no longer have an active card but 
were mistakenly not purged by TLC. She is 75% complete. There are about 3,000 
to be reviewed manually. The estimated completion is the end of August.  

 
 

 

134



Jul-22

Circulation 2022 2021 Book & Media Donations 2022 2021 Computer Sessions 2022 2021
Check-Outs & Renewals: 892 3365 Donations Received: 44 57 Adult Lab Sessions: 380 360
Year to Date Total: 6,818 9917 Year to Date Total: 463 716 Year to Date Total: 3,740 1150
In-House Book Circulation: 288 67 Donations Selected: 39 25 Juvenile Lab Sessions: 206 68
Year to Date Total: 1,551 203 Year to Date Total: 112 152 Year to Date Total: 521 288
In-House Magazine Circulation: 30 24 WiFi: 3,213 1265
Year to Date Total: 261 108 Year to Date Total: 30,475 10988
In-House Newspaper Circulation: 54 51 Reference Assistance 2022 2021
Year to Date Total: 451 137 By Phone: 101 118
New Borrowers: 18 16 Year to Date Total: 1,082 2720
Year to Date Total: 220 112 In-Person: 75 129

Year to Date Total: 918 961 Meeting Room Sessions 2022 2021
Sessions: 40 3
Year to Date Total: 299 5

Digital Resources 2022 2021 Reference Services 2022 2021
cloudLibrary Checkouts: 8189 0 Directional/Basic Questions: 82 139
Year to Date Total: 72221 0 Year to Date Total: 711 1909
NewsStand Checkouts: 0 0 Research Questions: 24 29 Technical Services 2022 2021
Year to Date Total: 1760 0 Year to Date Total: 288 439 New Items Added: 20 34

Computer Questions: 14 45 Year to Date Total: 733 652
Year to Date Total: 313 139 Items Processed: 44 32
Fax Assistance: 82 79 Year to Date Total: 523 544

Interlibrary Loans (ILL's) 2022 2021 Year to Date Total: 623 239 Items Withdrawn: 7 1
Items Requested: 89 71 Copy Assistance: 85 134 Year to Date Total: 234 862
Year to Date Total: 769 754 Year to Date Total: 738 422 Items Recataloged: 81 77
Items Sent: 44 39 Scan Assistance: 7 14 Year to Date Total: 688 1999
Year to Date Total: 395 364 Year to Date Total: 99 33 Items Repaired: 11 0

Print Outs: 2057 0 Year to Date Total: 74 13
Year to Date Total: 12681 0

 Dr. Hector P. Garcia Memorial Library Statistical Report

Page 1135



Jul-22

Adult Programming 2022 2021 Toddler Programming 2022 2021 Outreach Programming 2022 2021
Adult Events: 11 0 Toddler Events: 0 0 Events: 5 0
Year to Date Total: 39 10 Year to Date Total: 18 0 Year to Date Total: 19 5
Adults in Attendance: 119 0 Toddler in Attendance: 0 0 Toddlers in Attendance: 0 0
Year to Date Total: 367 17 Year to Date Total: 10 0 Year to Date Total: 83 0
Live Views: 0 0 Adults in Attendance: 0 0 Children in Attendance: 166 0
Year to Date Total: 1 0 Year to Date Total: 6 0 Year to Date Total: 611 59
Recorded Counts: 0 0 Live Views: 0 0 Teens in Attendance: 0 0
Year to Date Total: 0 13 Year to Date Total: 41 0 Year to Date Total: 0 0

Recorded Views: 0 0 Adults in Attendance: 23 0
Teen Programming 2022 2021 Year to Date Total: 247 0 Year to Date Total: 247 34

Teen Events: 6 1 General Attendance: 0 0
Year to Date Total: 26 6 Year to Date Total: 13 0
Teens in Attendance: 46 3 General Programming 2022 2021
Year to Date Total: 127 15 Events: 0 0
Live Views: 0 0 Year to Date Total: 8 0 Reading Programs 2022 2021
Year to Date Total: 0 0 Toddlers in Attendance: 0 0 Toddler Reading Logs: 0 0
Recorded Counts: 0 0 Year to Date Total: 22 0 Children Reading Logs: 0 0
Year to Date Total: 0 0 Children in Attendance: 0 0 Teen Reading Logs: 0 0

Year to Date Total: 392 0 Adult Reading Logs: 0 0
Children's Programming 2022 2021 Teens in Attendance: 0 0 Total: 0 61

Children Events: 7 6 Year to Date Total: 47 0
Year to Date Total: 56 25 Adults in Attendance: 0 0
Children in Attendance: 166 78 Year to Date Total: 201 0 Volunteer Hours 2022 2021
Year to Date Total: 656 231 Live Views: 0 0 Total: 25.75 33
Adults in Attendance: 72 32 Year to Date Total: 0 0 Year to Date Total: 1679 1239.5
Year to Date Total: 249 47 Recorded Views: 0 0
Live Views: 0 0 Year to Date Total: 0 0
Year to Date Total: 62 0
Recorded Views: 0 282
Year to Date Total: 644 4435

 Dr. Hector P. Garcia Memorial Library Statistical Report

Page 2136



Jul-22

Curbside Services 2022 2021 Social Media 2022 2021
Curbside Café: 8 8 Café Visits 2022 2021 Library Posts: 215 0
Year to Date Total: 252 467 Visits: 551 340 Year to Date Total: 2126 0
Curbside Circulation: 0 0 Year to Date Total: 4710 827 Library DMs: 0 0
Year to Date Total: 24 0 Year to Date Total: 14 0
Curbside Crafts: 0 0 Cafe Posts: 54 0
Year to Date Total: 65 0 Year to Date Total: 326 0
Curbside Other Services: 3 16 Café Sales 2022 2021 Café DMs: 0 0
Year to Date Total: 42 3193 Net Sales: 2,282.03$    1835.31 Year to Date Total: 2 0

Year to Date Total: 20,970.08$  11517.83 City Posts: 15 0
Sales Tax: 188.54$       152.18 Year to Date Total: 100 0
Year to Date Total: 1,714.90$    951.69 City DMs: 0 0

Library Visits 2022 2021 Year to Date Total: 22 0
Visits: 1,791 1261 Videos Created: 0 0
Year to Date Total: 20,731 5350 Year to Date Total: 10 0

Website Updates: 0
Year to Date Total: 158 0
HCLS Posts: 3 0
Year to Date: 21 0

 Dr. Hector P. Garcia Memorial Library Statistical Report

Page 3137



138



139



140



CITY OF MERCEDES
Budget vs Actual FY 2021-2022 (UNAUDITED)

As at 07/31/2022

01 GENERAL FUND
Budget Completed 83.33%

YTD Budget % of 
REVENUES Budget Actual Balance Budget
Taxes 8,737,643      7,972,362     765,281 91.24%
Licenses & Permits 167,500         507,234        (339,734) 302.83%
Fines & Services 2,117,460      1,647,697     469,763 77.81%
Intergovernmental 18,100           46,617          (28,517) 257.55%
Miscellaneous 1,252,100      1,155,255     96,845 92.27%

12,292,803    11,329,164  963,639        92.16%

EXPENDITURES
Commission 30,700           19,811          10,889 64.53%
Exe. Adm 237,303         182,337        54,966 76.84%
Human Resources 69,953           20,191          49,762 28.86%
City Secretary 110,225         85,559          24,666 77.62%
Mun. Court 142,621         113,563        29,058 79.63%
Finance 214,350         162,749        51,601 75.93%
IT 261,789         158,450        103,339 60.53%
Planning 485,095         369,019        116,076 76.07%
Police 2,987,868      2,465,795     522,074 82.53%
Animal Control 84,540           37,633          46,907 44.52%
Fire 1,298,008      1,030,177     267,831 79.37%
PW 99,912           99,104          808 99.19%
Streets 574,501         472,493        102,008 82.24%
Build. Maint. 245,516         230,435        15,081 93.86%
Veh. Maint. 288,784         224,751        64,033 77.83%
Parks & Rec 497,148         326,874        170,274 65.75%
Rec. Center 44,122           32,616          11,506 73.92%
Library 411,087         324,914        86,173 79.04%
Projects -                  -                 0 #DIV/0!
Sanitation 1,430,081      1,103,732     326,349 77.18%
Dome Shelter 259,358         197,610        61,748 76.19%
Non-Departmental 2,519,842      1,827,577     692,265 72.53%

12,292,803    9,485,388    2,807,415    77.16%

Rev. Over/Under -                  1,843,777 (1,843,777)   

NOTE:

141



CITY OF MERCEDES
Budget vs Actual FY 2021-2022 (UNAUDITED)

As at 07/31/2022

02 UTILITY FUND
Budget Completed 83.33%

YTD Budget % of 
REVENUES Budget Actual Balance Budget
Water & Sewer Sales 5,450,118      4,289,872     1,160,246     78.71%
Fees & Penalties 132,500         230,683        (98,183)         174.10%
Miscellaneous 3,000              2,769            231                92.29%

5,585,618      4,523,324    1,062,294    80.98%

EXPENDITURES
Information Tech 61,500           54,251          7,249 88.21%
Utility Billing 120,192         99,563          20,629 82.84%
Meter Readers 143,398         307,298        (163,900) 214.30%
W/S Field Crew 976,124         726,433        249,691 74.42%
W/S Treatment Plant 2,818,601      2,387,636     430,965 84.71%
Debt Service Int. 780,776         636,723        144,053 81.55%
Non-Departmental 685,027         95,663          589,364 13.96%

5,585,618      4,307,568    1,278,050    77.12%

Revenue Over/Under -                  215,756 (215,756)      

NOTE:

142



CITY OF MERCEDES
Budget vs Actual FY 2021-2022 (UNAUDITED)

As at 07/31/2022

15 INTEREST & SINKING FUND
Budget Completed 83.33%

YTD Budget % of 
REVENUES Budget Actual Balance Budget
Property Taxes 2,097,822      2,215,645     (117,823)       105.62%
Intergovernmental -                  -                 -                 0.00%
Miscellaneous 318,750         2,384            316,366        0.75%

2,416,572      2,218,028    198,544        91.78%

EXPENDITURES
Debt Service 2,416,572      2,044,696     371,876 84.61%

2,416,572      2,044,696    371,876        84.61%

Revenue Over/Under -                  173,332 (173,332)      

NOTE:

143



CITY OF MERCEDES
Budget vs Actual FY 2021-2022 (UNAUDITED)

As at 07/31/2022

16 HOTEL/MOTEL FUND
Budget Completed 83.33%

YTD Budget % of 
REVENUES Budget Actual Balance Budget
Taxes 86,000           111,443        (25,443)         129.58%
Reserves/Misc. 134,165         3,015            131,150        2.25%

220,165         114,457        105,708        51.99%

EXPENDITURES
Advertisement 151,440         88,073          63,367 58.16%
Historic Preservation 43,000           -                 43,000 0.00%
Arts Promotion 12,900           -                 12,900 0.00%
Signage 12,825           -                 12,825 0.00%

220,165         88,073          132,092        40.00%

Revenue Over/Under -                  26,384 (26,384)         

NOTE:  

144



CITY OF MERCEDES
Budget vs Actual FY 2021-2022 (UNAUDITED)

As at 07/31/2022

43 SERIES 2018 CO

JTD Budget
REVENUES Budget Actual Balance
Bond Revenue 9,991,085      9,991,085     -                 
Interest Income 127,917         128,443        (525)              
Miscellaneous 34,602           34,602          -                 

10,153,605    10,154,130  (525)              

EXPENDITURES 97.46%
Ambulance Services 519,644         519,644        -                 
PD Vehicles 534,243         534,243        -                 
PW Vehicles 566,131         502,641        63,490          
Rescue Vehicles 33,165           33,165          -                 
Drainage Improv. 496,257         442,500        53,757          
Sewer Improv. 1,484,309      1,484,309     -                 
Lift Station Improv. 1,352,229      1,352,229     -                 
Street Overlays 3,460,085      3,460,085     -                 
Street Improvements 104,946         104,946        -                 
Water Improv. 1,401,378      1,260,786     140,592        
Non-Departamental 201,218         201,218        -                 

10,153,604    9,895,766    257,839        

Revenue Over/Under 0                     258,364        (258,364)      

NOTE:  This fund is reported as Job to Date.

145



CITY OF MERCEDES
Budget vs Actual FY 2021-2022 (UNAUDITED)

As at 07/31/2022

46 EMS FUND
Budget Completed 83.33%

YTD Budget % of 
REVENUES Budget Actual Balance Budget
EMS Service Fees 700,000         310,237        389,763        44.32%
Intergovernmental 12,049          
Misc 20,000           -                 20,000          0.00%

720,000         322,286        409,763        44.76%

EXPENDITURES
Personnel Costs 127,082         74,663          52,419 58.75%
Contractual Sev. & Other 187,618         175,693        11,925 93.64%
Maintenance 41,000           25,801          15,199 62.93%
Supplies 114,300         74,890          39,410 65.52%
Capital Outlay -                  -                 0 0.00%
Paramedic Course 15,308          (15,308) 0.00%
Non-Departamental 250,000         97,950          152,050 39.18%

720,000         464,305        255,695        64.49%

Revenue Over/Under -                  (142,019) 154,068        

NOTE:

146



CITY OF MERCEDES
Budget vs Actual FY 2021-2022 (UNAUDITED)

As at 07/31/2022

51 AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN
Budget Completed

JTD Budget
REVENUES Budget Actual Balance
APR Revenue 2,057,319      2,057,319     -                 
Intergovernmental -                  -                 -                 
Miscellaneous 200                 200                -                 

2,057,519      2,057,519    -                 

EXPENDITURES
Contractual Services 61,714           61,714          0
Water Rate Study 37,725           37,725          -                 
Fema Dome Drainage 242,126         53,760          188,366        
TCEQ Comp. Self Audit 15,954           15,954          
Revenue Loss 1,000,000      1,000,000     -                 
PD Renovation 700,000         -                 700,000        

2,057,519      1,169,152    888,366        

Revenue Over/Under 0                     888,367 (888,366)      

NOTE:  This fund is reported as Job to Date.

147



CITY OF MERCEDES
Budget vs Actual FY 2021-2022 (UNAUDITED)

As at 07/31/2022

52 SERIES 2021 CO

JTD Budget
REVENUES Budget Actual Balance
Bond Revenue-Other Financ 8,250,000      8,250,000     -                 
Interest Income -                  16,899          (16,899)         
Miscellaneous -                  -                 -                 

8,250,000      8,266,899    (16,899)         

EXPENDITURES 31.92%
EMS/FIRE Equipment 787,765         782,765        5,000            
PD Vehicles/Renovation 1,341,445      194,221        1,147,224     
PW Equipment 245,045         245,045        0                    
Planning Equipment -                 -                 
Library 17,586           17,586          
Water/Utility Improv. -                 -                 
Sewer/Utility Improv. 3,456,740      167,463        3,289,277     
Lift Station Improv. 495,000         493,826        1,174            
Street Overlays -                 -                 
Street Improvements -                 -                 
Drainage Imrprov. 218,000         76,995          141,005        
Non-Departamental 171,516         171,516        (0)                   

6,733,097      2,149,417    4,583,680    

Revenue Over/Under 1,516,903      6,117,482    (4,600,579)   

NOTE:  This fund is reported as Job to Date.

148



Recvd Period
State 

Comptroller EDC (25%) Outlet Mall
Mth % 

Inc/Dec City (75%) Outlet Mall
Mth % 

Inc/Dec
State 

Comptroller EDC (25%) Outlet Mall
Mth % 

Inc/Dec City (75%) Outlet Mall
Mth % 

Inc/Dec
Oct Aug 360,547.72 86,798.28 3,338.65 12.42% 260,394.83 10,015.96 12.42% 532,219.32 126,355.59 6,699.24 -0.47% 379,066.78 20,097.71 -0.47%
Nov Sept 460,051.33 109,957.47 5,055.36 26.68% 329,872.41 15,166.09 26.68% 587,652.79 140,871.36 6,041.84 11.49% 422,614.08 18,125.51 11.49%
Dec Oct 415,587.16 99,592.24 4,304.55 -9.43% 298,776.72 12,913.65 -9.43% 437,734.09 86,028.38 23,405.14 -38.93% 241,523.79 86,776.78 -42.85%
Jan Nov 495,384.03 118,122.77 5,723.24 18.61% 354,368.31 17,169.71 18.61% 697,918.59 124,014.84 50,464.81 44.16% 481,772.27 41,666.67 99.47%
Feb Dec 713,337.55 168,646.44 9,687.95 42.77% 505,939.32 29,063.84 42.77% 1,038,314.60 171,132.45 88,446.20 37.99% 737,069.28 41,666.67 52.99%
Mar Jan 410,152.48 98,752.32 3,785.80 -41.44% 296,256.95 11,357.41 -41.44% 520,940.96 100,115.16 30,120.08 -41.50% 349,039.06 41,666.66 -52.65%
Apr Feb 391,843.83 94,641.26 3,319.70 -4.16% 283,923.77 9,959.10 -4.16% 521,262.12 98,145.09 32,170.44 -1.97% 349,279.92 41,666.67 0.07%
May Mar 702,975.27 166,637.28 9,106.54 76.07% 499,911.84 27,319.61 76.07% 736,963.37 140,542.60 43,698.24 43.20% 511,055.86 41,666.67 46.32%
Jun Apr 550,282.65 130,901.65 6,669.01 -21.45% 392,704.96 20,007.03 -21.45% 661,168.76 118,195.39 47,096.80 -15.90% 454,209.91 41,666.66 -11.12%
Jul May 537,060.71 127,770.34 6,494.84 -2.39% 383,311.02 19,484.51 -2.39% 586,740.98 112,926.95 33,758.30 -4.46% 398,389.07 41,666.67 -12.29%

Aug June 596,505.30 141,812.47 7,313.86 10.99% 425,437.40 21,941.58 10.99% 678,264.18 169,566.05 50.16% 467,031.47 41,666.67 17.23%
     5,633,728.03      1,343,632.52        64,799.50 9.34%      4,030,897.53     194,398.49 9.34%      6,999,179.76      1,387,893.86      361,901.09 3.29%      4,791,051.49     458,333.34 18.86%

Note: Pending Outlet Mall report for August from State Comptroller

BUDGET 4,800,000

2020-2021 2021-2022 Yr % Inc/Dec 2020-2021 2021-2022 Yr % Inc/Dec % OF BUDGET 39.05%
Oct 360,547.72 532,219.32 47.61% Oct 260,394.83 379,066.78 45.57%
Nov 460,051.33 587,652.79 27.74% Nov 329,872.41 422,614.08 28.11%
Dec 415,587.16 437,734.09 5.33% Dec 298,776.72 241,523.79 -19.16%
Jan 495,384.03 697,918.59 40.88% Jan 354,368.31 481,772.27 35.95%
Feb 713,337.55 1,038,314.60 45.56% Feb 505,939.32 737,069.28 45.68%
Mar 410,152.48 520,940.96 27.01% Mar 296,256.95 349,039.06 17.82%
Apr 391,843.83 521,262.12 33.03% Apr 283,923.77 349,279.92 23.02%
May 702,975.27 736,963.37 4.83% May 499,911.84 511,055.86 2.23%
Jun 550,282.65 661,168.76 20.15% Jun 392,704.96 454,209.91 15.66%
Jul 537,060.71 586,740.98 9.25% Jul 383,311.02 398,389.07 3.93%

Aug Jun 596,505.30 678,264.18        13.71% Aug Jun 425,437.40 467,031.47 9.78%
     5,633,728.03      6,999,179.76 24.24%      4,030,897.53      4,791,051.49 18.86%

Received Generated
October August
November September
December October
January November
February December
March January
April February
May March
June April
July May
August June
September July

Note: Revenue generated 2 months prior receipt.  Ex: Generated in Oct will be received Dec

Note: Mth % Inc /Dec compared to prior month.
Note: Yr % Inc /Dec compared to prior year.

CITY OF MERCEDES
SALES TAX COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS

BY MONTH RECEIVED

FY 2020-2021 FY 2021-2022

Yearly Total Sales Tax Comparison Yearly City Sales Tax Comparison

149



 -

 100,000.00

 200,000.00

 300,000.00

 400,000.00

 500,000.00

 600,000.00

 700,000.00

 800,000.00

 900,000.00

 1,000,000.00

 1,100,000.00

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug
2020-2021 360,547.72 460,051.33 415,587.16 495,384.03 713,337.55 410,152.48 391,843.83 702,975.27 550,282.65 537,060.71 596,505.30
2021-2022 532,219.32 587,652.79 437,734.09 697,918.59 1,038,314. 520,940.96 521,262.12 736,963.37 661,168.76 586,740.98 678,264.18

Total Sales Tax Comparison

2020-2021 2021-2022

150

Nereida
Text Box
Total Sales Tax Generated by the City of Mercedes



 -

 100,000.00

 200,000.00

 300,000.00

 400,000.00

 500,000.00

 600,000.00

 700,000.00

 800,000.00

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug
2020-2021 260,394.83 329,872.41 298,776.72 354,368.31 505,939.32 296,256.95 283,923.77 499,911.84 392,704.96 383,311.02 425,437.40
2021-2022 379,066.78 422,614.08 241,523.79 481,772.27 737,069.28 349,039.06 349,279.92 511,055.86 454,209.91 398,389.07 467,031.47

City Sales Tax Comparison

2020-2021 2021-2022

151

Nereida
Text Box
Total Sales Tax kept by the City of Mercedes after contributions to EDC and payments to Outlet Mall.



08-09-2022 04:55 PM                               C O U N C I L   R E P O R T                                   PAGE:     1

VENDOR NAME                              DATE   DESCRIPTION                FUND               DEPARTMENT                     AMOUNT_

 

AMBIOTEC CIVIL ENGINEERING GROUP, INC   7/07/22 6849 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            27,658.93_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          27,658.93

 

BLUECROSS AND BLUE SHIELD OF TEXAS      7/06/22 BILL PERIOD 07/01-08/01/22 GENERAL FUND       POLICE                      18,043.52_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          18,043.52

 

CAPEX CONSULTING GROUP                  7/07/22 2 (1) WATER AND WW RATE ST AMERICAN RESCUE FU AMERICAN RESCUE FUND        28,050.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          28,050.00

 

CITY OF MERCEDES                        7/27/22 JUNE-JULY 2022 WATER CONSU GENERAL FUND       PARKS & RECREATION          10,506.04_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          10,506.04

 

COMPTROLLER OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS          7/13/22 2ND QTR 2022 STATE CRIMINA GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            13,967.26_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          13,967.26

 

DANA SAFETY SUPPLY, INC                 7/07/22 WIN 10 PRO INTEL COR       SPECIAL REVENUE FU SW BORDER RURAL LAW         35,685.00

                                        7/07/22 DS-PAN-432-2 DOCK          SPECIAL REVENUE FU SW BORDER RURAL LAW         11,321.31_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          47,006.31

 

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION OF MERCEDES     7/15/22 JULY 2022 SALES TAX        GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL           146,685.24

                                        7/08/22 VTX NOTE PAYMENT #49       GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            10,416.67_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:         157,101.91

 

ERO                                     7/07/22 19059-MERCEDES PD  ARCHITE SERIES 2021        POLICE                      14,175.86_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          14,175.86

 

GARCIA INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTANTS, LLC  7/27/22 1051 GENERAL SERVICE-WATER GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            21,125.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          21,125.00

 

GEXA ENERGY, LP                         7/13/22 MAY-JUNE 2022 ELECTRIC     GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            14,782.91

                                        7/13/22 MAY-JUNE 2022 ELECTRIC     UTILITY FUND       WATER/SEWER TREATMENT       29,732.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          44,514.91

 

HIDALGO & CAMERON COUNTIES              7/25/22 881 EXCAVATION SERVICES    SERIES 2018        DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS       60,949.43_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          60,949.43

 

HIDALGO COUNTY APPRAISAL DISTRICT       7/07/22 3948 CITY ASSESSMENT       GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            13,712.50_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          13,712.50

 

HIDALGO COUNTY ELECTION A               7/21/22 05/07/22 ELECTION SERVICES GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            16,239.26_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          16,239.26

 

LAW OF OF MARTIE GARCIA VELA, PC.       7/01/22 MERCEDES009 LEGAL WORK     GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            14,700.00

                                        7/22/22 MERCEDES 011 LEGAL WORK    GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            14,140.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          28,840.00

 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES, LLC                 7/07/22 NO.1 REHAB AND IMPROVEMENT SERIES 2021        DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS       15,300.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          15,300.00

 

ND SONIC 3, LLC                         7/28/22 LOCAL ECONOMIC GROWTH INCE GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            75,000.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          75,000.00

 

PERDUE, BRANDON, FIELDER, COLLINS & MO  7/19/22 PROPERTY TAX SUIT#T-090-07 GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            10,073.00

                                        7/19/22 PROPERTY TAX SUIT#T-0954-1 GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            33,782.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          43,855.00

 

152



08-09-2022 04:55 PM                               C O U N C I L   R E P O R T                                   PAGE:     2

VENDOR NAME                              DATE   DESCRIPTION                FUND               DEPARTMENT                     AMOUNT_

 

R.L. ABATEMENT, INC                     7/13/22 SERVICES                   SERIES 2021        POLICE                     147,475.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:         147,475.00

 

SIMON PROPERTY GROUP, LP                7/01/22 06172022 1ST QTR OUTLET MA GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            55,532.03

                                        7/01/22 06172022-B 2ND QTR MALL PA GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL           125,003.59_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:         180,535.62

 

SWG ENGINEERING, LLC                    7/15/22 10093 DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT AMERICAN RESCUE FU AMERICAN RESCUE FUND        10,170.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          10,170.00

 

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RET. SYST               7/25/22 PENSION PLAN PAYABLE       GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            11,872.83

                                        7/25/22 PENSION PLAN PAYABLE       GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            12,074.59

                                        7/25/22 PENSION PLAN PAYABLE       GENERAL FUND       POLICE                      11,264.95

                                        7/25/22 PENSION PLAN PAYABLE       GENERAL FUND       POLICE                      11,208.04_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          46,420.41

 

TEXAS NATIONAL BANK                     7/13/22 FEDERAL W/H                GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            11,422.06

                                        7/25/22 FEDERAL W/H                GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            11,680.94

                                        7/13/22 FICA W/H                   GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            10,639.81

                                        7/25/22 FICA W/H                   GENERAL FUND       NON-DEPARTMENTAL            10,861.73_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          44,604.54

 

U.S. WATER SERVICES CORPORATION         7/01/22 S150197 MONTHLY COMPENSATI UTILITY FUND       WATER/SEWER TREATMENT      161,018.36

                                        7/15/22 S152195 MAY MONTHLY COMPEN UTILITY FUND       WATER/SEWER TREATMENT      161,018.36

                                        7/15/22 S152195 MAY MONTHLY COMPEN UTILITY FUND       WATER/SEWER TREATMENT       53,842.50

                                        7/15/22 S152195 MAY MONTHLY COMPEN UTILITY FUND       WATER/SEWER TREATMENT       10,255.71

                                        7/15/22 S154165 JUNE MONTHLY COMPE UTILITY FUND       WATER/SEWER TREATMENT      161,018.36

                                        7/15/22 S154165 JUNE MONTHLY COMPE UTILITY FUND       WATER/SEWER TREATMENT       41,414.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:         588,567.29

 

WASTE CONNECTIONS OF TEXAS              7/07/22 1986818V113 GARBAGE COLLEC GENERAL FUND       SANITATION DEPARTMENT      103,941.13_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:         103,941.13

 

                                   =============== FUND TOTALS ================

                                   01   GENERAL FUND                 816,334.03

                                   02   UTILITY FUND                 618,299.29

                                   07   SPECIAL REVENUE FUND          47,006.31

                                   43   SERIES 2018                   60,949.43

                                   51   AMERICAN RESCUE FUND          38,220.00

                                   52   SERIES 2021                  176,950.86

                                   --------------------------------------------

                                                GRAND TOTAL:       1,757,759.92

                                   --------------------------------------------

TOTAL PAGES:    2

153



08-09-2022 04:55 PM                               C O U N C I L   R E P O R T                                   PAGE:     3

                                                  SELECTION CRITERIA

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

SELECTION OPTIONS

VENDOR SET:       99-City of Mercedes

VENDOR:           All

CLASSIFICATION:   All

BANK CODE:        All

ITEM DATE:         0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

ITEM AMOUNT:          10,001.00   THRU  99,999,999.00

GL POST DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

CHECK DATE:        7/01/2022 THRU  7/31/2022

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

PAYROLL SELECTION

PAYROLL EXPENSES: NO

EXPENSE TYPE:     N/A

CHECK DATE:        0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

PRINT OPTIONS

PRINT DATE:       Check Date

SEQUENCE:         By Vendor Name

DESCRIPTION:      Distribution

GL ACCTS:         NO

REPORT TITLE:     C O U N C I L   R E P O R T

SIGNATURE LINES:  0

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

PACKET OPTIONS

 

INCLUDE REFUNDS:  NO

INCLUDE OPEN ITEM:NO

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

154



Mercedes Municipal Court

Revenue Collected by Citations

July 1, 2022-July 31, 2022

City of Mercedes Revenue $9,236.69

State of Texas Revenue $7,528.17

Total Revenue Collected $16,764.86

Total Number of Cases (Dockets) Heard by Court - 33

Eduardo Mendoza, Municipal Court Coordinator

155



JAN. 

2022

FEB. 

2022

MAR. 

2022

APR. 

2022

MAY. 

2022

JUN. 

2022

JUL. 

2022

AUG. 

2022

SEPT. 

2022

OCT. 

2022

NOV. 

2022

DEC. 

2022

0 4 1 2 0 2 5

0 2 2 2 0 4 0

2 5 5 0 1 3 4

1 3 1 0 3 0 0

5 8 3

1 0 0

0 14 13 7 5 14 4

22 20 23 19 29 13 22

8 2 0 12 1 1 7

1 2 0 0 3 1

1 1 0 1 1 1 1

31 46 37 51 46 56 27

19 34 33 41 29 44 19

3 2 5 8 4 7 4

5 5 5 1 6 7 1

0 0 1 1 0 0 0

4 0 0 1 0 2 0

Significant Comments:

Retirements

Workers Comp

HUMAN RESOURCES

New Hires

Resignations

OPEN RECORDS

Received

Responded

Filling w. State

Issuing Birth

Issuing Death

RISK MANAGEMENT

Vehicle Claims

Liability Claims

TABC

VITAL STATISTICS

Reg./Special 

PERMITS

Sound/Dance

Contracts

Resolutions

Ordinances

Bids

Reg./Special/Wkshp

Minutes

4 6 2 2 2 3 2

2

CITY SECRETARY'S OFFICE 2022 

ANNUAL REPORT

TYPE

CITY SECRETARY

Agenda

2 5 2 2 4 3

156



YTD   Total

14

10

20

8

16

1

57

148

31

7

6

294

219

33

30

2

7

21

20

157



MONTHLY REPORT (JULY 2022) 

Employee information 

Employee name Brianna Casares Position Public Information Officer 

Department Administration Manager Joselynn Castillo 

Report start date 07-01-22 Report end date 07-31-22

Action items (Events 

Action item Date Role 

Summer Reading Program Celebration 07-01-22 Hosted and emceed 

event for library 

Gateway Travel Center Groundbreaking 07-13-22 Helped to coordinate with 

EDC, and attended to take 

photos and video for social 

media platforms 

Created press releases and 

notified media 

Multiple news agencies in 

attendance 

Boosted percentages of 

engagement across 

platforms 

Zarate Home & Designs Groundbreaking 07-14-22 Organized and planned 

groundbreaking event with 

Zarate homes CEO, Oscar 

Zarate 

Emceed event 

Covered groundbreaking on 

social media 

Notified media and wrote 

media press release 

Fire Department Scheduling  

Community Outreach: Presentation of Fire Safety 

For Fire Marshal 

07-14-22 Coordinated with 

Mercedes Rec to create 

a fire safety presentation 

for summer students 

Sonic Ribbon-Cutting 07-15-22 Attended to publicize 

grand opening of Sonic 

by Crush Enterprises 

News Media was present 

158



Page | 2 

Action item Date Role 

Texas Street Festival Press Conference 

Autism Soccer Camp (Dome) 

07-27-22 

07-16-22 

Notified media 

Public announcement 

with the TSF performers 

Helped to coordinate 

and organize soccer 

camp at Mercedes 

 

 

 

 

Long-term goals 

Goals Due date Progress 

Employee Spotlight   

Police Department Recruitment Video   

Fire Department Spotlight EMS Course   

Revival Church Group Event   

360 Videos of Downtown Area for Potential Business 

Owners 

  

New Ordinances PSA’s   

 

159



160



161



162



163



164


	8-16-22 Agenda Signed
	Item 7A - August 2, 2022
	Item 8A - Ordinance to REZONE-MOT lOT 24 bLK 69
	Item 8B - MSW Ordinance
	Item 9A - Budget Amendment
	Item 9A - City School Maintenance Initiative Howell-Martinez 8-11-22
	Item 9B1 - Write Up-Proposed Tax Rate
	Item 9B2 - 2021-2022 PROPERTY TAX REVENUE CALCULATION
	2022-2023

	Item 9C - City School Maintenance Initiative
	Item 10A1 - 8-16-22 MISD FY22-23
	Item 10A2 - Draft 4 MISD Local Agreement Police (1)
	Item 10B1 - doc00562020220812214246
	Item 10B2 - Animal Shelter Contract Mercedes 2022
	Item 10C1 - Childrens Advocacy Center PD
	Item 10C2 - CAC1
	Item 10C3 - CAC2
	Item 10D - Engineering Services
	Item 11 - 1 - PD july Report
	Item 11 - 2 - PW july Report
	Item 11 - 3A - Library july Report
	Item 11 - 3B - Library july Report
	July

	Item 11 - 4 - Planning july Report
	Item 11 - 5A - Finance july Report
	07.31.22

	Item 11 - 5B - Finance july Report
	2021-2022
	Chart2
	Chart3

	Item 11 - 5C - Finance july Report
	Item 11 - 5D - Finance july Report
	Item 11 - 6A - City Secretary HR july Report
	Item 11 - 6B - PIO july Report
	Item 11 - 7 - Fire july Report



